ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

JO NT MEETI NG

HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE

SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE

August 31,

2006

1: 06 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

HOUSE RESOURCES

Representati ve Ral ph Saruel s, Co-Chair

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kurt O son
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Harry Crawford

SENATE RESOURCES

Senat or Tom Wagoner, Chair

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Vice Chair

Senator Fred Dyson
Senator Bert Stednman
Senator Kim El ton
MEMBERS ABSENT

HOUSE RESOURCES

Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Mary Kapsner

SENATE RESOURCES

Senat or Ben Stevens
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative David Quttenberg
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

KENSI NGTON M NE | SSUES

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -1-

August 31,

2006



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record

W TNESS REGQ STER
Presenters were:

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH
Al aska State Legislature

M KE MENGE, Conm ssi oner
Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

ED FOGELS, Acting Deputy Comm ssioner
Anchorage Ofice

Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

KURT FREDRI KSSON, Conm ssi oner
Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC)

LYNN TOM CH KENT, Director
Di vi si on of Water
Departnment of Environnental Conservation (DEC)

CRAI G TI LLERY, Deputy Attorney General (AQ
G vil Division
Depart ment of Law (DQL)

HOMRD GREY
Al aska M ner's Associ ation

RUSSELL HEATH, Executive Director
Sout heast Al aska Conservation Council (SEACC)

TI M ARNCLD, Vice President/General Manager
Coeur Al aska, Inc.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R THOVAS WAGONER called the joint neeting of the House and
Senate Resources Standing Comrittees to order at 1:06:27 PM
Representatives Sanuels, Ranras, Seaton (via teleconference),
Gatto, and LeDoux, and Senators Wagoner, Dyson, Stedman (via
tel econference), and Elton (via teleconference) were present at
the call to order. Representatives O son (via tel econference)

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 2- August 31, 2006



and Crawford, and Senator Seekins arrived as the nmeeting was in
pr ogr ess.

[ Chai r Wagoner handed the gavel over to Co-Chair Sanuels.]

KENSI NGTON M NE | SSUES

1: 08: 02 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUJELS announced that the only order of business was
t he hearing on the Kensington M ne |ssues.

1: 08: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH, Al aska State Legislature, stated
the foll ow ng:

I"'mcalling in to voice our district's strong support
for Kensington Mne and the environmental stewardship
it has shown in its permtting process in the work to
date on this m ne.

1:10:11 PM

M KE MENGE, Commi ssioner, Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR),
noted that years ago he worked for the Departnent of
Environnental Conservation (DEC) pertaining to environnmental
quality, and, during that service, he had "a passing association
with the permtting process.” He stated that [the Kensington
M ne] project has been wunder the regulator's scrutiny since
1990. Hundreds of studies on the issue have been conpl eted, and

every issue has endured major scrutiny. He said there cones a
poi nt where a fundanental decision nust be made as to whether
the state will support mning or not. He said the state has the

nost rigorous permtting program in the nation; Alaska' s |arge
project mning plan coordinates with the federal governnent's.
He said at the end of the stringent process, when the permt
witers have agreed on a plan, the chances of there being a
probl em have been reduced "as far as humanly possible.”
Comm ssioner Menge related that quality individuals have been
involved on all sides of [the Kensington Mne] project, and he
expressed pride in the decision that was reached and the role
that DNR played in facilitating the permt process. He said
"these folks" don't support anything that is unethical, and he
asked the commttee to keep that in mnd while listening to the
ensui ng testinony.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 3- August 31, 2006



1:14: 20 PM

ED FOCELS, Acting Deputy Conm ssioner, Anchorage Ofice, Ofice
of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR),
noted that before he served in his present position, he was the
state's mning coordinator and the main agency official on the
Kensi ngton M ne project during the three-year permtting effort.
He offered a Power Point presentation on the permtting aspect of
the Kensington Mne [hard copy handout included in the commttee
packet] . The second page of the handout shows an aerial
photograph of the Berner's Bay area, Slate Creek Cove - the
proposed dock site, and the proposed tailings disposal area at
Lower Sl ate Lake. The next page, he noted, shows a closer view
of Lower Slate Lake. He explained that a dam would be
constructed across the outlet of the |[ake. After ore was
extracted from the ore body, the mning operation would process
the ore, and the tailings - the waste stream from the process -
woul d be punped back under ground and backfilled under the m ne.
However, not all the tailings will fit underground, so the plan
is to punp the remainder into Lower Slate Lake. As the tailings
settle to the bottom of the lake, the level of the |ake would
rise, and ultimately, behind the dam there would be a bigger
| ake with a bottomfull of tailings.

1: 16: 56 PM

MR. FOGELS turned to the next page of the PowerPoint, which is
titled, "State Agencies Large Mne Permtting Team" and which
lists the follow ng agencies: DNR, DEC, Al aska Departnent of
Fish & Gane (ADF&S, the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities (DOT&PF), the Departnent of Comrerce, Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), and the Departnent of Law (DQL).
He named Tom Crafford as being the State Mning Coordinator,
noting that that is a position that he hinmself currently held.
He said the permtting team is experienced; many have been
menbers for over 15 years. M. Fogels turned to the next page
of the handout, which shows the major regulatory requirenments.
The following permts were issued through DNR reclamation plan
approval and bonding; Title 41 fish passage permt; water
rights; right of way; dam safety certification; tidelands |eases
for dock facilities at Slate Cove and Cascade Point; and the
coastal zone consistency determ nation. He listed the permts
i ssued by DEC, which are: Section 401 certification of the U S.
Army  Corps of Engi neers  (USACE) wet | ands; Section 401
Certification of the US. Environnental Protection Agency's
(EPA"s) National Pollutant Discharge Elimnation System (NPDES)
permt; sewage treatnment system approval; and air quality. In

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -4- August 31, 2006



response to a question from Co-Chair Sanuels, he explained that
USACE wi Il issue the "404" wetlands permt and, by |law, DEC has
to certify that permt; it's a state concurrence for the
wet | ands permt.

1:19: 32 PM
MR. FOGELS, in response to a question from Representative Gatto,

explained that a wetlands permt allows the permttee to fill
wet | ands. He said:

Each time ... [USACE] goes through the process,
they' || nmake a determination as to what t he
environmental inpacts are of filling that wetland, and
then in some cases they nmay require ... mtigation,

and that m ght be replacenent wetlands sonmewhere el se,
that m ght be a nonetary contribution sonewhere, so it
vari es case by case.

1: 20: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked what contribution or mtigation was
required in the case of the Kensington M ne.

1: 20: 16 PM
MR. FOGELS answered he is not sure.
1:20: 27 PM

MR. FOCELS continued to the next slide in the handout, which
shows [an elevation] map of Lower Slate Lake. He explained that
the heavy black line shows what the contour of the lake is
projected to be at closure, and the straight line at the bottom
of that contour is where the dam woul d be. He noted that the
contour lines show that Lower Slater Lake is very deep, and
I ight does not penetrate very far into it. Because of that, he
said, there is very little productive habitat in the |lake. Part
of the reclamation plan is to create nore productive habitat in
the | ake, because as the water line rises, there will be nore
shal | ow ar eas.

1:22: 02 PM
MR. FOGELS outlined the reclamation plan approval, as shown on

the next slide in the handout. He said all mnes nust have a
pl an, which nust be approved by DNR As part of the plan, he

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 5- August 31, 2006



rel ayed, the mines nust post a bond of financial assurance to
ensure that the state or the federal governnent can reclaimthe
property if the mning conpany "can't do it for sonme reason.”
In response to a question from Representative LeDoux, he said
Al aska Statute allows the state to accept bonds in various

forms. Sonme exanples, he said, are: maturity bonds that are
managed through a third-party conpany, gold, and letters of
credit. The latter, he noted, is the nobst comon form of

financial assurance. He offered further details.
1:23:32 PM
CHAIR WAGONER asked if there have been any cases in which

letters of credit have been issued to the state and there has
been a defaul t.

1:23:47 PM

MR. FOGELS recalled one exanple having to do with the Illinois
Creek Mne, in which the Dakota M ning Conpany went bankrupt and
the state had to call in a letter of credit. He said
unfortunately the bond was established too |ong ago and, thus,
was too inadequate to "do the job." He noted that the story

turned out okay, because the state found another way to reclaim
the mne, but it Ilearned a valuable |esson about paying
attention to the anmount of the bond. He directed attention to
the next slide in the handout, which shows how financia

assurance, or bonding, works. First, he said, a detailed
engi neering analysis is done to find out what the cost of
reclaimng the project would be. The m ning conpany provides
information to assist in that analysis.

1:25:45 PM

MR. FOGELS said the bond for the Kensington Mne project
includes capping of the tailings, if needed, which he said is
significant. He said a cap of organic materials would enable
the recolonization of the | ake. M. Fogels said the bond is
periodically recal cul ated throughout the life of the mne, which
allows the bond to be adjusted for changing prices, such as the
rising of fuel ©prices. He said the Kensington bond is
approximately $7.3 mllion, and it is in the formof a letter of
credit.

1: 26: 39 PM

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 6- August 31, 2006



MR. FOGELS directed attention to the next slide regarding the
Title 41 fish habitat/fish passage permt. This permt is
required any tinme work has to be done in fish-bearing waters.
He noted that there are three permts along Johnson Creek;
however, the key permt is the Lower Slate Lakes Tailings
| mpoundnent, which requires that the | ake be reclained. He read
a paragraph in the permt as foll ows:

The tailings in Lower Slate Lake are expected to have

very low toxicity. Fol |l owi ng reclamation, the |arger
and shallower |ake is expected to provide habitat for
macroi nvertibrates and forage fish that will support a
popul ation of Dolly Varden [and] char. If nonitoring
shows the tailings are not suitable for colonization,
the tailings will be capped with clean naterial. Ve
anticipate t he recl ai ned area wil | provi de

overw ntering, spawning, and rearing habitat for Dolly
Varden [and] char.

1:27:51 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked if the rocks that will be put in the |ake
will be "very like the native rocks that are in and around the
| ake now. "

MR. FOGELS answered yes.

SENATOR DYSON noted fromthe prepared materials that cyani de and
other chemicals would not be used in the refining process. He
asked, "WII|l there be anything in the process that would
increase the toxicity of those rocks any [differently] than the
native rock in the area?"

1:28: 33 PM
MR. FOGELS confirmed that cyanide wll not be used at the
Kensi ngton Mne site; however, he said there will be chenicals

used to process the ore. He said the ore is ground finely into
a dust-like consistency, mxed with water, and then mxed wth
flotation rations. He continued:

Essentially, they form like soap bubbles, and they
bubble up ... this mxture of ore and water, and the
bubbles w Il pick up certain mnerals. And you can
design the chemstry of the flotation rations to pick
up the mnerals that ... you want it to trap. They'll
float to the top, get scrapped off, and what settle

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -7- August 31, 2006



down, that's the waste product and the tailing. So,
these flotation rations are chemcals, and they are
used in the process. They' re nowhere near as toxic as
cyani de is. They can be toxic in large quantities,
but they do biodegrade, and all the projections show
that once they're put in the lake, they'll be
entrained within the tailings or biodegrade in the
wat er above the tailings. It should eventually return
to clean water standards.

1: 29: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked if other material is put over the
tailings to ensure that the tailings don't [each into the water.

1:30: 12 PM

MR. FOCELS replied yes. He explained that the tailings "settle
out” and form "a discreet layer at the bottom of the |ake," at
which point, if needed, another organic |ayer can be added that
would settle down and conpletely cover the tailings. He
estimated that |ast |ayer would be about six inches deep.

1:30: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked what guarantees that the tailings
don't "get through the capping.”

1: 30: 39 PM

MR. FOGELS responded that the tailings form a solid |ayer. He
said, "The material that is going to be placed on top is likely

to be sone kind of ... organic material - ... ground up top soi
material from the area - so it wll form a |l|ayer of,
essentially, nud. The tailings should not nobilize; they'|ll be

deep enough where wave action won't really pick things up. And
so, the projections are that it should settle out quite nicely."

1: 31: 16 PM

MR. FOGELS continued with his presentation, pointing to the
slide in the handout relating to dam safety certification. He
said the dam nust be designed to certain standards, which
i ncl ude seism c standards. Moreover, there has to be financia
assurance for the long-term care and mai ntenance of the dam He
brought attention to the next slide, which shows a cross section
drawing of the Lower Slate Lake tailings, and he enphasized the

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 8- August 31, 2006



conprehensi ve technol ogical engineering review that is used in
the process of creating the dam

1:32:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said recently the Fort Knox M ne operation
has changed its permt from using the aforenentioned operation
to that using a "heap-leach cyanide operation."” He asked what
the potential is for the Kensington Mne to decide it is nore
econom cal to use this nethod.

1:32: 53 PM

MR, FOGELS suggested that a mning conpany representative could
better explain the nature of the ore body and the mning
oper ati on. Notwi t hstanding that, he shared his view that a
heap-|1 each operation is nore suited to a l|arge, open-pit
operation such as Fort Knox than is would be to [the Kensington
M ne] . Irrespective of that fact, he said, if the Kensington
Mne were to decide it wanted to change its mne plan so
significantly, it would need a whol e new set of reviews and nost
likely an entirely new environnental inpact statenent done on
the m ne, which would take a nunber of years to do.

MR. FOGELS turned to the next slide, which lists the other
federal agencies involved in the review as follows: the U S.
Forest Service, which is the |lead agency; the U S. Environnental

Protection Agency; USACE, the U S. Fish and WIldlife Service;
and the National Mrine Fisheries Service. He brought attention
to the next slide, which shows the major federal regulatory
requi renents, and he highlighted the first two on the list: The
first is the U S. EPA Section 402 NPDES Water Discharge Permt,
related to any water |eaving the |ake and going over the dam
into the creek below M. Fogels said there is a treatnent
pl ant proposed for that water, which would nonitor and test the
water so that it neets water standards required by |aw The
second is the USACE Section 404 Dredge and Fill Permt, which is
the wetlands permt subject to current litigation. He explained
that the two key federal permts triggered the Nationa

Environnental Policy Act, which required the environnental

i npact statenment, and that was the driver behind the nost recent
process that resulted in a recommendation of the Lower Slate
Lake tailing facility as the preferred alternative.

MR, FOCELS stated that "the overall Kensington process" began in

1990, with the original application, and the first ES was
conpleted in 1992. The conpany then revised its mne plan and

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -9- August 31, 2006



subnmitted anot her operation plan, for which another EIS was done
and conpleted in 1997.

1: 35:45 PM

CO- CHAIR SAMUELS asked if another EI'S would have to be done in
the event that SEACC is successful in its court challenge and
tailings are not allowed in the |ake and instead nust go back to
the dry-stack. In other words, he asked, "Once you've gotten
t he second one, is the first one no | onger valid?"

1:36: 14 PM

MR, FOGELS said the answer to that question is conplicated. He
explained that the conmpany changed its entire mne plan
dramatically from that of the last EIS and would have to
significantly change the plan again to utilize the dry-stack
facility.

1: 37:11 PM

CO CHAIR SAMIJELS asked the following question of M. Fogels,
saying that he would ultimately like those representing the
Department of Law to answer the question as well:

If capital expenditures had been nade on one side
of the nountain because the permts were issued in
good faith and everybody operated in good faith, and
then it is turned around and thrown out by the federa
courts, is there liability that either the state has
or [USACE has] ... if that capital expenditure now has
to be noved?

MR. FOCGELS responded that he cannot answer the question and,
thus, he deferred to the Departnment of Law. Continuing with his
presentation, he brought attention to the PowerPoint slide
showi ng the "Kensington Process,"” which notes that the current
application was submtted in Novenber 2001, followed by a public
process in the sumer of 2004, and a final EIS and record of
decision (ROD) issued in Decenber 2004. He said the state
permts were issued in May 2005, and the federal permts were
issued in June and July 2005. The next slide shows a row of
binders filled with permt applications and mne studies. He
offered his understanding that if all the studies that were done
in the previous processes were added together, the total would
be over 900.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 10- August 31, 2006



MR. FOGELS directed attention to the next two slides, which show
aeri al photographs of the Red Dog and Fort Knox M nes. He said
those mnes are relevant to what is going on with the Kensington
M ne currently. He said the Red Dog Mne punps its tailings
into Red Dog Creek. He continued:

| show this slide just to point out that | think one
of the fundanental concepts of this litigation is that
these tailings should be permtted under EPA's 402
process as a clean water discharge rather than as
wetlands fill, which would prohibit, basi cal |l y,
putting those tailings in any water bodies or
wetlands. And so, | think if you draw the litigation
out to its logical conclusion, and if it goes in favor
of SEACC, | doubt very seriously that Red Dog M ne
woul d have been permttable.

MR. FOGELS, in response to a question from Co-Chair Sanuels
said he does not think such a determnation by the 9th Crcuit
Court would invalidate the Red Dog Mne's current permt;
however, he said he is not 100 percent certain of that answer.

1: 40: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDQUX asked, "What effect would this have on
[the] Pebble [M ne]?"

1: 40: 26 PM

MR. FOGELS answered that the Pebble Mne, and any other future
m ne, could potentially have a much nore difficult tinme getting
permtted. He proffered that it would be difficult to build a
mne in Alaska wthout putting tailings in wetlands. I'n
response to a followup question from Representative LeDoux, he
specified that it is his opinion that it couldn't be done.

MR. FOGELS, in response to a question from Co-Chair Sanuels

clarified, "If you had to put tailings in wetlands, | think if
you follow the reasoning behind this lawsuit, you could reach
the conclusion that you shouldn't be putting mne tailings in
wet | ands - period."”

1:41:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked for a definition of "wetlands."

1: 41: 57 PM

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -11- August 31, 2006



MR. FOGELS answered that under the O ean Water Act, wetlands are

defined broadly as including: |akes, streanms, bogs, and swanps.
He said there is a definition as to the type of soils and
veget ati on. M. Fogels concluded by enphasizing that there

currently is a strong process between the state and the federal
government that considers projects individually on their own
nmerits. He said tailings from a mning project vary; every
single mne has a different type of tailing stream that is
produced. The Red Dog M ne, for exanple, has reactive tailings
that have to be treated carefully, while other mnmnes -
Kensi ngton being one - produce benign tailings that are not
reactive at all. He indicated the inportance of studying the
tailings from each mne to discern their character, determ ning
the type of wetland involved, and analyzing the environnental
i npacts. He relayed that agencies need to have the discretion
to base their decisions on those factors, and he said it is the
state's opinion that that process should happen on a project-by-
proj ect basis.

1: 43: 37 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked for a definition of wetland fill, mne
waste, and mne tailings.

1:44: 02 PM

MR. FOCELS stated that mne waste can include a nunber of
different products from a mne, including devel opnent rock from

the mne adit or, in the case of an open pit mne, the
overburden that is on top of the ore body. The tailings, he
expl ai ned, are the waste product that cone out of the mlling
process and are subject to sone kind of treatnment, for exanple,
cyanide or a floatation process. He said it is sonetines hard
to handle, to get it to stack up - an expensive process. He

said waste products essentially are either devel opnent rock or
tailings, and both, in certain circunstances, have to be handl ed

with care. M. Fogels said wetland fill is defined in federal
|aw and statute and the current definition lists mne tailings
as being included in possible fill product.

SENATOR ELTON r emar ked:
There has been an evolution over a long period of

tinme. Just to let the nmenbers know, ... the original
proposal for tailings was to go straight into Lynn

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -12- August 31, 2006



Canal off the beach. The second was the dry-stacking,
and then Sl ate Lake obviously is the third.

1:47: 01 PM

KURT FREDRI KSSON, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Environnental
Conservation (DEC), said the departnent has issued 401
certification related to the Kensington Mne project. He
directed attention to page 3 of the DEC handout, describing the
information as wuseful in guiding DEC s review of the project.
He explained that DECs permt authority is exercised in

conjunction with the federal agencies, in this case primrily
with USACE, under the 404 fill permt, and with EPA, under 402
of the Cean Water Act. The latter, he said, relates to the
di scharge off the dam into the |ake creek. He said the issue
with DEC is a question of where the point of conpliance occurs
related to water quality standards. The federal governnment

regul ates the activity and DEC undertakes 401 pernmits for both
the federal 404 and 402 permts.

1: 49: 37 PM

LYNN TOM CH KENT, Director, Division of Wter, Departnment of
Envi ronnental Conservation (DEC), offered further details on the
topic of the permts.

The conmittee took a brief at-ease to address sone technical
difficulties.

M5. TOM CH KENT continued with her presentation. She rel ayed
that it is the federal permt framework that is at the center of
the challenge that has been filed by SEACC and "others." She
said the previously nentioned 402 and 404 permts are known by
the authorizing sections under the federal Cean Water Act. She
noted that a 404 permt is required for the discharge of fill
material to waters of the US. She said the federal definition
for discharge of fill material includes the discharge of al nost
any substance that has the effect of changing the bottom
el evation of a water body. The definition specifically includes

the placenent of nine tailings. The federal definition for
waters of the US. is broad and includes: | akes, rivers,
streans - including intermttent streans, nud flats, sand flats,
wet | ands, slues, prairie potholes, wet neadows, "file" |akes or
natural ponds, and the territorial sea. Basically, she
summari zed, the definition includes anything on the surface that
is wet. Essentially, she explained, a 404 permt is required

"when al nost anything is placed into alnost any kind of a water

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 13- August 31, 2006



body or a wetland.” She said that in the particular case of a
mne tailings inmpoundnent, a Section 404 permt is typically
required both to fill an area to construct a dam and to "place
the tailings within the inpoundnment that occurs behind the dam"”

M5. TOM CH KENT, addressing the Section 402 permt, said it is a
permt that is required of a point source discharge, which she

described as "things that come out the end of a pipe.” The
permt covers discharge of any pollutant other than fill that
goes to a "surface water body." Section 402 permts are also
known as national pollutant discharge elimnation system ( NPDES)
permts, she noted. Federal franmework requires a Section 402
NPDES permt for discharge of wastewater from the inpoundnent
into the receding waters. \Whether or not a fill material can be

placed into a wetland or water body hinges on the results of a
series of tests that are established in federal regulation, and
those tests are referred to as the 404(b) (1) guidelines. These
guidelines require a conparison between the practicable
alternatives for tailings disposal and a finding by both USACE
and EPA that the permtted alternative is the |east
environnmental |y danmaging of the practicable alternatives. In
the case of the Kensington Mne, she noted, the 404(b)(1)
process concluded that the Slate Lake tailings inpoundnent would
be the least environnentally damaging practicable alternative.
Thus, USACE issued its Section 404 permt to place the fill, to
construct the dam and to discharge the tailings behind the dam
into the inpoundnent that's resulted there in Lower Slate Lake.
She said the EPA then issued the Section 402 permt - the NPDES
permt - for the discharge from the dam into Slate Creek down
bel ow t he dam

M5. TOM CH KENT stated that the role of DEC in the Cean Wter
Act permtting of the mne falls under yet another section of
the Act, which is Section 401. That section says that the Corp
of Engineers cannot issue one of its permts under 404 or 402
unless the state has either waived its opportunity to review

those permits or has certified that those permts wll conply
with state |aw In Al aska, she related, DEC is the
certification authority for the Cean Water Act permt. The

operative state law is the state's water quality standards which
are established in state regulation under 18 AAC Chapter 70.
The water quality standards are |limts on allowable changes in
water quality, and are designed to protect a variety of uses of
wat er . She stated that the federal Cl ean Water Act permts
i ssued under Sections 404 and 402 are reviewed by DEC to
determine if there is "reasonable assurance" that the federal
permts wll result in conpliance with Alaska's state water

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -14- August 31, 2006



gqual ity standards. The state may, and often does, include
conditions in its certification of those federal permts to
provide additional assurance that the state water quality
standards are going to be net, she said. In response to a
guestion from Co-Chair Sanuels, she confirned that the state nmay
add additional provisions, but cannot detract from the base
m ni mum st andar ds.

1:56: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is a federal standard that
requires that any water |ife killed off as a result of the
tailings be replaced by a biological equivalent, or if the
federal governnent wll say, "Nope, you're going to Kkill off

this group, then you' ve essentially violated the rules.”
1:56:59 PM

M5. TOM CH KENT responded that USACE mmintains requirenments for
mtigation related to wetlands fill projects. She said she does
not know the answer to the previously asked question as to
whether or not there are mtigation requirenents for [the
Kensi ngton M ne] project, but she suggested that the question be
asked of the representative from the Kensington M ne. She
continued with her presentation as foll ows:

In the case of these mmjor mne devel opnents or other
| arge, new projects, DEC conducts that certification
in concert with the overall project pernitting team
that's managed or supervised by [the] Departnent of
Natural Resources, and it's that coordination that
helps ensure that DECs permts or - in this
particular case - our certification of those federa

permts, is done on schedule in conjunction wth the
other activities for the project devel opnment.

M5. TOM CH KENT, regarding DECs role in the Kensington M ne
water and water quality permtting, said DEC analyzed both the
f eder al permts and f ound t hat wth sone addi ti ona

stipulations, those permts would provide Al aska with reasonabl e
assurance that the water quality standards would be net. She
reported that DEC certified the Section 404 permt in My 2005,

after addi ng 15 additional conditions to the permt.

Furthernore, DEC certified the Section 402 permt in June 2005,
after adding 8 conditions. She noted that the Departnent of Law
is prepared to provide an overview of the legal issues in the
court case.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -15- August 31, 2006



1: 58: 42 PM

SENATOR DYSON requested information from a neutral and objective
source that would outline the attributes of select chemcals
used in flotation processes, including information regarding how
the chem cals degrade in fresh water at various tenperatures and
what kind of delusion is necessary to ensure no significant
bi ol ogi cal damage

1:59: 57 PM

M5. TOMCH KENT said she would be happy to provide that
information to the commttee.

2: 00: 08 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked how often the capping process on tailings
happens.

2:00: 25 PM

M5. TOM CH KENT answered that it is a one-tinme process done at
the end of the mine's life.

SENATOR DYSON asked why the capping wouldn't be done every six
months to a year if there is sone environnental byproduct
present that is |ess than ideal

M5. TOM CH KENT answered that because the operation wll be
actively placing additional tailings into the pond during the
life of the mne, it doesn't nake sense to put a cap down and
then put nore tailings on top of it.

SENATOR DYSON responded that that seenms |like a strange answer.
He said, "If what's going into the water with the tailings has
some bad effect, why would we wait for 30 years to cap it?"

M5. TOM CH KENT expl ai ned that the discharge that conmes fromthe
i mpounded area through the treatnment system has to neet certain
wat er qual ity standards.

SENATOR DYSON asked if it would be logical to infer that there

are no concerns about an inpact on biological life in the water,
upstream of the dam towards the pipe.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 16- August 31, 2006



M5. TOM CH KENT answered, "During the life of the project, we're
not concerned about the water quality in the pond at the tine
they're still operating the mne."

SENATOR DYSON concluded that "it wll be probably sonmewhat
biologically inert,” which is what he said he thought the answer
woul d be.

2:02: 47 PM

CO CHAI R SAMELS asked Ms. Tomich Kent to confirmthat the order
of the process is to test the tailings, then test the slurry
that goes into the water, and finally to test the water com ng
out of the | ake.

M5. TOM CH KENT answered that's correct.
2:02: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the purpose of the cap is to
protect substances below it and keep them from escaping, or if
the cap actually nodifies the substances below to "let tine
enough pass so they becone inert."

2:03: 20 PM

M5. TOM CH KENT replied that the cap would confine the tailings
bel ow, as wel | as create a substrate sui tabl e f or
recol oni zati on.

CO CHAIR SAMUELS pointed out, "The tailings are tested before
they're put into the water."

M5. TOM CH KENT said that's correct.

CO CHAIR SAMJELS continued, "If there are toxins, then ... it
beconmes a bit of a npbot point, because you're going to stop
i mredi ately. The cap isn't for toxins leaking up into the
water; the cap is ... so you can have nore biological growth in
t here. ™

M5. TOM CH KENT indicated that the cap is a "contingency" having
to do with the following circunmstances occurring at the end of
the mne life: water quality not neeting the water quality
standards or substrate not being suitable for recol onization.

2:04: 19 PM

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -17- August 31, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked for clarification regarding the
pur pose of the cap.

2:04: 30 PM

M5. TOM CH KENT said the cap serves two purposes: one, to cap
the tailings, so that the materials in those tailings do not get
back into the "water colum"; and two, to create a substrate - a
sui tabl e surface - for recol onization.

2:04:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked if the departnent anticipates
eart hquakes as a potential problem

2:05: 30 PM

COWM SSI ONER  FREDRI KSSON addressed Representative LeDoux's
concern. He said a cap is not a guarantee; there are other
events that can cause it to be breached. He noted that

t hroughout Al aska there are caps on landfills that, at tines,
due to slope instability or earthquakes, can crack and have to
be restored, and he said he would assune the sane would apply to
a tailings cap.

2:06: 53 PM

CRAIG TILLERY, Deputy Attorney GCeneral (AG, Gvil Division,
Department of Law (DOL), discussed issues surrounding the
[itigation. He noted that in using the Section 404 permt,
USACE relied upon a revised definition of fill material that it
and the EPA had jointly promulgated in 2002. That revised
definition, he noted, had elimnated sone prior contradictions
related to the definition of "spill," and specifically Ilisted
mne tailings as spill materials to be regulated under Section
404. He continued as foll ows:

In Septenber of 2005, the three plaintiffs, which
[are] SEACC, the Sierra Cub, and the Lynn Canal

Conservation Goup - which | would just refer to
generally as SEACC here - brought this law suit in
federal court. They sued the [U S. Arny] Corps of

Engineers and they sued the [U S.] Forest Service;
they did not sue the State of Al aska. Coeurs Al aska,
[Inc.] - the company, Al aska, and Goldbelt, [Inc.] - a
|ocal [Alaska Native Cainms Settlenent Act (ANCSA)]

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 18- August 31, 2006



corporation - noved to intervene in the suit as
def endant . ol dbelt was in there because they had a
proposed project to build the dock that would be part
of the ferry terminal for the mne.

SEACC s conplaint, as it was originally done, had two
counts. The first one raised a purely l|egal issue of
whet her the disposal of mne tailings should be
regulated by the [U S. Arny] Corps of Engi neers, under
the Cean Water Act, Section 404, or whether it should
be regulated by the EPA under Section 402. The
second count challenged the [US. Arny] Corps of
Engi neers' then underlying rationale in selecting this
di sposal option. And anong other argunents, SEACC
alleged that the [U S. Arny] Corps of Engineers should
have considered the inpact of Goldbelt's proposed
marine termnal, as part of [the] Kensington M ne
proj ect . They asked the court to declare that the
[US. Arny] Corps of Engineers' 404 permt was
inconsistent with the Cean Water Act, and to reverse
the [U S.] Forest Service's approval of Coeur's plan
of operati on.

The court sort of took this one at a tine, and said,
"let's start with count one, the purely legal issue.”
Very shortly thereafter, the [US. Arny] Corps of
Engi neers asked for a voluntary remand of its permt
so that it can conduct a further review The court
granted that not i on, and essentially everything
stopped for several nonths while the court did this
review. Then, in March 29 or 2006, the court issued a

revised record of decision. They reaffirnmed their
ori gi nal conclusion that the selected tailings
di sposal opti ons conplied W th t he regul atory

gui delines that governed the issue of the 404 permts,
and then they added sone nore matters to deal wth
sonme of the other issues that had been rai sed.

The Corp of Engineers then reinstated the 404 permt,
allowing the tailings to be placed in Lower Slate

Lake. In response, SEACC then filed an anended
conplaint, which was simlar to the original, except
that it now was conposed only of count one - just
strictly the legal challenge on whether you ... should

deal with these under Section 404. The court ordered
expedited briefing, and all of that was conpleted in
May of 2006

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -19- August 31, 2006



A few nonths later, on August 3 of 2006, the court
ruled in the case, and it ruled in favor of the
defendant, and wupheld the [US. Arny] Corps of
Engi neers' permt. The state, of course, along wth
Coeur, had intervened as defendants at this tine. In
so ruling, the court recognized that under suprene
court case law, it should use a deferential standard
of review - and |I'm not going to go through and sort
of bore you with the standards of review - but it was
fairly key wth the decision, and it said that
basically we should defer to an agency in interpreting
a law and interpreting its regul ation.

I n approaching the Kensington case, the court | ooked
at whet her Congress had specified how the disposal of
tailings should be permtted, that is, should it be
permtted by the [US. Arny] Corps [of Engineers] or

by EPA? The court noted that Congress had not
defined fill material. I nstead, Congress left it to
the [U S. Arny] Corps of Engineers and EPA to figure
it out, and that is what they had done in 2002 through
their joint rule-nmaking.

The court then considered whether that revised
definition was correctly applied, and in that they
guoted from the preanble to the ... 2002 rule-nmaking
where it was stated, and I'll quote here, that "the
pl acenent of overburden, slurry, or tailings, or
simlar mning-related materials have been added to
the definition of discharge or fill material." And
this provided further clarification, and that was very
much its intent.

G ven these clear statenments in the preanble to the
rule, the court rejected the argunent by SEACC t hat
the agencies never intended for mne tailings ... -
like these generated at Kensington - to be included
and regulated as spill. In short, then, they found no
nerit to the lawsuit and dism ssed the conplaint on
August 3. SEACC imredi ately appealed the District
Court's decision to the 9th Grcuit Court of Appeals,
and then noved for an injunction in front of that
court on activities, pending a decision on the nerits

of the appeal. All of the defendants, including the
interveners and including the state, opposed that,
arguing that first of all it lacked nerit, that the

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 20- August 31, 2006



answer was clear, and that in any event there would be
no irreparable injuries for the types of activities
that would be occurring, pending a decision on the
appeal, which we fully expected to be expedited.

2:13: 42 PM

MR TI LLERY conti nued:

Now, pur suant 9th Gircuit [ Court of Appeal s]
procedures, that notion was considered by a two-judge
notion panel, which is not typically, but can be I
believe, the sane panel that would actually consider
t he case. ... The ... two-judge notion panel granted
the injunction and then also entered an order setting
an expedited briefing schedule to be conpleted by md-
Cct ober . We anticipate that the case would then be
ready for decision by the 9th GCrcuit [Court of
Appeal s] in Novenber 2006, unless an oral argunent
schedul ed; and if that happens, then it stands upon

the 9th Circuit [Court of Appeals'] and the
panel's availability.

W're at a position where, in looking at this
injunction, we went to the court rules to see what our
prospect would be for seeking reconsideration for

trying to get a larger panel - sort of an en banc
reconsideration of this - and we determ ned that that
really was not feasible. Under the court rules it

says in one place that such filings are discouraged,
it says in another place that they are rarely granted,
and our practice and experience tells us that that is
t he case

What we have concluded is that legally the best option
at this point is for us and for the defendants and the
plaintiffs to nove forward with the expedited briefing
schedule and try to conplete this and get a decision
as qui ckly as possi bl e.

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -21- August 31

as

2:15: 29 PM

MR. TILLERY sumarized the view of the departnent in regard to
the state's perspective of legal issues going forward,
fol |l ows:

2006



The definition of fill, adopted by the federa
agencies charged with admnistering the Cean Wter

Act, clearly i ncl udes m ne tailings such as
Kensi ngt on. That is what we think is the nost
i nportant issue. Secondly, we believe that the Corp

of Engineers therefore acted properly in permtting
t hem under Section 404. SEACC will have a different

view of the result of those issues. But again, at
this point, one of our major concerns is to nove
forward ... quickly.

2:16: 23 PM

MR. TILLERY, in response to a question from Co-Chair Sanuels,
stated that he sees no realistic chance that the state would "be

on the hook." First, he explained, the permit is a federal one.
Second, he said, even if it were a state action, the departnent
believes that it would be protected under discretionary

i mmunity. As to whether the federal governnment would have any
liability, he said, "they would have to speak for thenselves."
However, he added, "But as a veteran of sone amount of
litigation against the federal governnent, they have a raft of
reasons why they are never l|iable for anything."

CO- CHAIR SAMUELS asked, "If this permt is found to be illega
or invalid, is there a possibility that you go back on them and
revoke theirs and have to have them go through a whole EIS all
over agai n?"

2:17: 33 PM
MR. TILLERY responded that this would not be a retroactive kind

of deci sion. Furthernore, he said, this issue is being decided
under rules pronmulgated in 2002; the Red Dog [ M ne] was "under a

prior set of rules.” He stated, "It ... is highly unlikely that
there would be anything that would cone back on Red Dog because
of this. As to future mnes, it ... definitely would inpact
mnes ... upcom ng the next few years."

2:18: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked, "Does the decision of the 9th
Circuit [Court of Appeals] give enough leeway that certain
activities of the mne - of Kensington - could have continued
wi t hout shutting the whol e thing down?"

2:18: 32 PM

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -22- August 31, 2006



MR. TILLERY deferred to a representative of the Kensington n ne
to answer that question.

2:19: 06 PM

HOMRD CGREY, Alaska Mner's Association, told the commttee that
the association represents Alaska's mning industry statew de
and works to pronote m ning and advocate responsi bl e devel opnent
to provide an econonm c base for Al aska. He reviewed that the
Kensington Mne project was the subject of a rigorous, 3-year
environmental review, at the conclusion of which the State of
Al aska, USACE, and the U S. Forest Service selected an
alternative that included [Lower] Slate Lake as the location for
a tailings facility. He said this was an environnentally
preferred alternative. He related that recently the U S. Bureau
of Land Managenent awarded Coeur Alaska, Inc. the prestigious
2006 Hardrock M neral Commodity Qutreach and Econom c Security
Award, presented to those hardrock mning projects that have
shown both responsible mneral resources developnent and an
under st andi ng of sust ai nabl e devel opnent.

MR. GREY said Kensington Mne is a small, underground mne in an
area with a long history of mning. Mning there would not
require a new area to be opened, and there is little [and and no
wi | derness affected by the operation. The project will not be
visible from the water surface of Berner's Bay, he said, wth
the exception of a nodest dock facility at Slate Cove. He
echoed previous testinmony that Kensington Mne wll not use

cyanide or other harsh chemcals on site; the concentrates wll
be shipped offsite for final processing. The rock material |eft
after gold renoval is relatively inert, he said. In fact, the
material could likely be used for recreational beaches. The
proposed use of Lower Slate Lake is tenporary; the conpany wl|
rehabilitate the | ake at the end of the project.

2:22:35 PM

MR. GREY said the agencies and the association believe that the
Kensington Mne is an environnmentally responsible project. The
environnmental inpact statenent clearly denonstrates that the
project wll protect the public resources of Berner's Bay,
protect fish habitat in Slate Creek, and will ultimately enhance
the fish habitat in Slate Lake. M. Gey stated that the
| awsuit by the environnmental plaintiffs threatens to elimnate
approximately 200 jobs for Alaskans and put in jeopardy mllions

of dollars that could be spent in Southeast Al aska's econony.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 23- August 31, 2006



He enphasi zed that both the legal briefs and the C ean Water Act
are equally applicable to all types of U S waters. If the
court were to adopt the environnental plaintiff's view of the
Clean Water Act, placenent of tailings would not only be
forbidden in Lower Slate Lake, but also in many other waters of

the U S Tailing ponds, he relayed, are alnost always
constructed in the point of a valley, and the dans in this
| ocation, by definition, nust cross a stream In other words,

he explained, tailing ponds and facilities alnost always affect
waters of the U. S. Because so nuch of Alaska is identified as
wetl ands, he noted, that interpretation would elimnate the
ability to place tailing facilities in nost l|location in Al aska.
If the plaintiff's view of the Cean Water Act had been adopted
years ago, he said, it would have probably been inpossible for
federal agencies to have authorized Red Dog Mne, Geens Creek
M ne, and possibly Fort Knox and True North, anong others.
Tailings placenent for each of those mnes, he related, received
a USACE Section 404 permit. He pointed out that argunents being
advanced against the Kensington Mne are simlar to those
advanced against the Pogo Gold Mne "until comunity pressure
sort of saved the day."

MR GREY stated that this lawsuit is a threat to mning
t hroughout Al aska and could affect communities and citizens
t hroughout the state, as well as [negatively] inpact "other
types of operations outside of mning."

2:27: 14 PM

RUSSELL HEATH, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Conservation
Council (SEACC), told the conmttee that SEACC is a conservation
group that is a coalition of 17 citizen conservation groups

t hroughout Sout heast Al aska. He stated that the mssion of
SEACC is to protect the region's extraordinary resources and to
ensure a W se and sustainable use of those resources. He said

many inportant issues are at stake related to jobs, economc
devel opnent, the future of mning in Al aska, and the managenent
of natural resources. He stated, "The nore broadly and the nore
fully that ... these issues are understood, the better we
Al askans can nake the ... correct decisions regarding them"

MR. HEATH clarified that SEACC s |legal challenge is against the
US. Any Corp of Engineer's permt authorizing Coeur Al aska,
Inc. to dunp its chemcally processed mne tailings into Lower
Sl ate Lake. He stated that it's not a challenge against the
Kensington Mne itself, and he relayed that the injunction that
was issued by the 9th Grcuit Court of Appeals does not require

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 24- August 31, 2006



the construction of the mne to shut down, but rather to
mai ntain a status quo around the tailings facility.

MR. HEATH, in response to a previous statenent that all federal
and state agencies consider the Kensington Mne's tailings
facility alternative as the preferable one, stated that the EPA
does not. He read a statenment by the EPA as foll ows:

Alternative A is the only alternative that will avoid
the habitat loss in Lower Slate Lake during mne
operations and the wuncertainty in ternms of Slate
Lake's long-term recovery. It is also the only
alternative t hat avoi ds signi ficant i npact to
sensitive habitat and resources in Berner's Bay.
Alternative A is EPA's preferred alternative, because
in addition to being environnentally preferable, it
appears to be a practical and feasible alternative.
The dry tailings facility proposed under Alternative A
is a standard industry technology in use at other
m nes in Al aska.

MR. HEATH, in response to the comment that the lawsuit wll shut
down mining in Alaska, said that is not SEACC s intent, nor is
it the understanding of SEACC or its |lawer that that would be
t he out cone. He said the practice of the Pogo and G eens Creek
mnes is to take out the wetlands, put fill on top of the
bedrock, and then place the tailings on top of that |ayer. He
indicated that that is Alternative A and although it may be a
"bureaucratic kind of way around how you put tailings [in]
wetlands,” that is a practice that would not be in any way
[imted by the | awsuit.

2:31: 03 PM

MR. HEATH offered SEACC s history of involvenment with this
i ssue. He stated that in 1998, Coeur Al aska, Inc. received all

necessary permts for "the project that ultimately the
corporation chose on its own not to pursue.” | nstead, it
redesigned the mne and reinitiated the review and permtting
processes to arrive at the current mne proposal. He noted that
SEACC has participated in every step "of these processes.” He
named SEACC s two chief concerns about the new design: t he

impact on Berner's Bay and the inplication the tailings design
has in regard to water quality both in Al aska and in the rest of

country. In an attenpt to address and resolve the concerns and
avoid litigation, SEACC negotiated with Coeur Alaska, Inc. for a
nunber of nmonths [in 2005]. In terns of the inpacts on Berner's

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 25- August 31, 2006



Bay, he stated his belief that SEACC found ways to adjust the
design of the mne or its plan of operations that would protect
t he bay. However, he noted, SEACC was unable to find common
ground with Coeur Alaska, Inc. related to the tailings disposal
An attenpted nediation sponsored by the Gty and Borough of
Juneau also failed to resolve the issue, he said.

MR. HEATH stated that in 1972, when President N xon signed the
Clean Water Act into law, the Anmerican people conmtted to
stopping the disposal of industrial waste into Anerica s waters
and to clean up those waters that had been damaged by past
practices. He said that as a result of that massive task, fish
have returned and children are swinmng in many |akes and rivers
t hat were once dead and poi sonous.

MR. HEATH rel ated that one of the problens SEACC sees related to
t he managenent of natural resources is that their econom c val ue

is often overl ooked. Clean water, for exanple, supports the
coormercial and sport fishing industries, tourism and the
recreation system He offered an exanple of gillnetters

mar keting their fish as "rain forest wild."

MR. HEATH stated that the Kensington Mne will be the first mne
since the Clean Water Act was signed in 1972 to dunmp its
chemcally treated mne tailings into a natural water body,
which is a big step backward, undercutting the hard work that
U.S. citizens have done in the past 30 years and setting a bad
precedent for other mnes in the future.

2:36: 07 PM

MR. HEATH said M. Tillery gave a good overview of the |ega
i ssues; however, he said SEACC s opinion differs from that of
the Departnent of law, in that it thinks it has a legitimte
challenge to the permt. He said he thinks the 9th GCircuit
Court of Appeals, in issuing the injunction, sees the nmerits in
SEACC s case. He nmentioned a regulatory change that occurred in
2002, having to do with the definition of "fill," and he said
clearly there were mnes prior to 2002 that were adequately
permtted and went forward without this regulatory change, and
SEACC believes that mning can continue in Alaska using a
realistic definition of fill. Tailings, he remarked, are not
fill; they are chemcally processed waste fromthe m nes.

MR, HEATH said it is SEACC that has requested an expedited

heari ng, because the issue is so inportant to Juneau and m ne
wor ker s. He offered his understanding that oral argunents are

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 26- August 31, 2006



scheduled for the first week of Novenber. He reiterated his
poi nt about the efforts that had been made to settle the issue
out of court. He said the corporation clains that any other
option is too expensive, and SEACC thinks that the dangers of
the current approach are too great. He stated that safeguarding
Al aska's water is worth the investnent, and he expressed the
organi zation's wllingness to work with the agencies involved
and with Coeur Alaska, Inc. to expedite the inplenentation of
alternatives

2:39: 10 PM

CO CHAIR SAMJELS asked, "If the testing is all done and the
water's comng out fine, then what's the problenf?" Furthernore,
he asked if SEACC supported Alternative A, using the dry
stacking nethod, and if there would be the possibility of yet
anot her group filing suit over that option.

2:40: 13 PM

MR. HEATH, to the first question, stated that he has been
inmpressed with the state's regulatory procedure and has no doubt
it wll conduct adequate testing. However, he said that to this
day, the testing of the toxicity of the tailings is
i nconcl usi ve. He noted that the effluent that comes out of the
pipe is toxic; there's no dispute about that. He stated that
all aquatic life in the lake will be killed under the proposed
procedure during the tine that the mne is in operation. M.
Heath indicated that regarding a 1998 plan, the mning conpany
withdrew its proposal; the permts were on the table, but the
conpany decided not to pursue the project. In response to Co-
Chair Sanuel's question related to the possibility of another
group filing suit in the event that Alternative A is used, he
mentioned a possibility of putting a dry stack tailing facility

on the other side of a ridge in the Berner's Bay site. He
conti nued:
W would be willing to work with the conpany to site
this in such a way that SEACC would not file a |aw
suit. ... It is not that any environnental group can
cone in and file a lawsuit. ... To have standing in a

court, you must have denonstrated that you' ve actively
participated in the planning and the permtting
process in the beginning. It's not a random thing
her e. SEACC has put hundreds and hundreds of staff
hours into examning this process to be sure that it's

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -27- August 31, 2006



being done in the best possible way. So, no one can
come in without having participated in the process.

CO CHAI R SAMUELS suggested that if the SEACC board chose not to
take action, one of SEACC s 17 nenbers could cone forward on its
own and, having been part of SEACC, announce that it will now
individually file suit.

2:43: 14 PM

MR. HEATH deferred to the lawers for a definitive answer.
Notwi thstanding that, he offered his understanding that an
i ndi vidual group that is a coalition menber of SEACC can't "junp
on" SEACC s work to achi eve standing.

2:43:40 PM

SENATOR DYSON, regarding M. Heath's comrent that the effluent
would kill the aquatic life, asked him if he neant the whole
| ake or "just upstream of the new dam"”

MR. HEATH responded that the entire |ake is upstream of the dam

and he stated his belief that all aquatic life will be killed
during the operation of the mne. He suggested confirm ng that
belief with M. Fogels. He noted that there is a stream that
comes from Upper Slate Lake to Lower Slate Lake, and he said he
doesn't believe the effluent will nmake any difference in Upper
Sl ate Lake.

2:44:10 PM

MR. HEATH, in response to a question from Chair \Wagoner,
estimated that there are probably few if any fish in Lower Slate
Lake currently. He said the |lake has been partially
"dewat ered. " He explained that the photograph of Lower Slate
Lake that the commttee was shown previously was taken before
any mne activity began. He said the trees around the |ake have
been cleared; there is a road there, and there is a partial dam

CHAI R WAGONER shared how he becanme aware of the issue at hand
when he first was elected. He said he is a comrercial fisherman
who has been involved with a group that brands his fish and
sells them and he considers hinmself an environnentali st. That
said, he questioned SEACC s notive in waiting until the mne
conpany had done all its preparation work and invested mllions
of dollars - probably close to $100 million in the permtting
process - before filing the lawsuit, rather than addressing the

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 28- August 31, 2006



i ssue four years ago before the project got so far advanced. He
asked, "Are you really trying to nake sure the project goes
according to the way you want it to go, or are you trying to
kill the project?"

MR. HEATH reiterated that SEACC has been part of the process and
has stated its concern from the begi nning. He said SEACC could
not and would not file a law suit wuntil it saw the actual
permt. He offered his understanding that the permt was issued
in June 2005, at which tinme SEACC was still in negotiations with
t he conpany. He explained that SEACC w thheld the |awsuit at
that point wuntil it realized that the negotiations with the
conpany were not going to resolve the problem He said he
believes it was in late July that SEACC filed the Ilawsuit,
asking at that point for an expedited briefing; however, the
| awsuit was put on hold because USACE voluntarily remanded the
permt. He offered his understanding that the day before the
briefs were to be issued, USACE withdrew the permt, at which
point the lawsuit "was essentially on ice" for alnost five
nmont hs. He echoed M. Tillery's summary, stating that when the
permt came back, SEACC reevaluated it and w thdrew one count,
but pursued the nobst inportant point regarding the precedent
that this kind of tailings disposal would be setting.

2:48: 29 PM

CHAl R WAGONER asked M. Heath if, in his mnd, he considers the
lawsuit to be primarily about precedent than about pollution.

MR. HEATH answered, "It's about both."

CHAI R WAGONER said when he toured the Kensington Mne area, he
saw the glacial streams, the condition of the |akes, and the
manner in which the mne is |looking after the water quality, and
he opined that SEACC s fears are unfounded. He said he thinks
the corporation is doing a fine job in complying with the
permtting process and working the mne, and he thinks a
terrible nessage is being sent out nationwide to mning
conpani es being asked to cone to Al aska, because of the SEACC
organi zation's acti ons.

MR. HEATH expressed appreciation for Chair Wgoner's concern.
He clarified that this is the first time in a generation that a
mning conpany is planning to put its effluent in a |ake.
Notw t hstanding the high quality of the agencies involved and
the review they have exercised over the project, he said, this
precedent will be nationw de. He stated his concern that other

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 29- August 31, 2006



mnes across the country will be putting their tailings in
water. He reiterated that there are other alternatives to use.

2:50:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX, regarding M. Heath's previous remark
that in order to have standing, it is necessary to be part of
the permtting process, asked if that nmeans that a nenber of the
public could not bring a |aw suit under the C ean Water Act.

MR. HEATH deferred to the Departnment of Law, but offered his
understanding that the Cean Water Act does have a citizen suit
provi si on. He said he does not know what kind of standing a
person nust have in order to exercise that provision. For
exanpl e, an individual may have to denponstrate harm He said in
order for SEACC to have had standing, it had to have
partici pated throughout the process.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked, "As an organi zation?"

MR. HEATH replied that an individual could have done it, as
wel |, but SEACC is bringing the law suit as an organi zati on.

2:51:27 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that after Hurricane Katrina, water
was punped into Lake Ponchartrain in huge anounts. He asked if

t here have been any studies show ng that that | ake has suffered.

MR. HEATH said that is an excellent question for which he has no

answer . He said he thinks sonetines national energencies trunp
ot her | aws. He recalled when that incident occurred, the water
that was sitting in New Ol eans was horribly polluted from human
waste and toxic chem cals. He pointed out that one of the
reasons that Hurricane Katrina was so devastating was because of
how the wetlands were being nanaged in Louisiana. He said if
the wetlands had been better protected, New Ol eans probably
woul dn't have sunk as far below sea level as it did. He
concluded, "So, that's part of the reason why ... we're here ...

defending Al aska's waters."

2:52:39 PM

COCHAIR SAMIJELS renarked that sonme of the coments nade
previously by M. Fogels and M. Gey were onerous. He said if

SEACC had filed and won a lawsuit related to the Red Dog M ne,
that m ne would not exist. He said, "And so, from here on out,

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 30- August 31, 2006



if you can't get a permt to get tailings in wetlands - if
that's what the 9th Grcuit Court [of Appeals] conmes out and
says ... - we're done. And that is a huge concern to ne." He
stated that he would rather |ook at every case individually
rather than nmaking a blanket regulation or ending up with a
bl anket court ruling.

2:54: 06 PM

MR. HEATH respectfully disagreed that the lawsuit will result in
m ni ng being shut down in Alaska. He said the Red Dog M ne was
permtted under other circunstances. He said he is not a
| awyer, but he reiterated that the Kensington tailings facility
was permtted under regul atory change that was nmade in 2002, and
mnes were adequately and fully permtted under an earlier
reginme and are working currently in the state.

2:54:45 PM

CHAI R WAGONER qual ified reveal ed that twelve of his constituents
are working on the Kensington mne project, and he enphasized
that the mne is a statewi de issue, nore than just a |ocal one.

MR. HEATH concurr ed.

COCHAIR SAMJELS asked M. Tillery to address the previous
guestion regardi ng who m ght have standi ng.

2:55:32 PM

MR, TILLERY said M. Heath is correct that earning standing is a
result of having participated in the process. It could have
been individuals who had participated and can denonstrate sone
i nportant standing. Not just anybody can junp into the process
at this point, he indicated, but he rem nded the conmittee that
al ready involved are three plaintiffs, as previously noted. He
said he does not know the makeup of SEACC, and he said the
departnment would probably argue that "soneone else could not
cone in now and challenge this if a resolution was to be
reached."” However, he said, "I cannot guarantee you that if it
was one of their constituent organizations that we would keep
t hem out . "

2:56: 52 PM

TIM ARNOLD, Vice President/General Manager, Coeur Al aska, Inc.,
said the conpany is currently constructing the Kensington Gold

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 31- August 31, 2006



M ne in Southeast Alaska. He stated that he would be limted in
his testinony to his prepared remarks and would not be
entertaining question, due to the pending litigation in the 9th
Circuit Court of Appeals. He expressed appreciation to those in
the community and political positions who have stated their
support of the m ne. He said the Kensington Mne is critically
important to the econony of Southeast Alaska and is rightly the
subj ect of ongoing |egislative interest.

MR. ARNCLD of fered his background working in and around m nes of
all types and living in many different places. He stated:

From stemto stern, the permtted Kensington Gold M ne
has the best environnental design of any project that

|"ve ever been associated wth. It's blessed wth
natural attributes that make it unique in mning and
[is] desi gned utilizing attributes especially

appropriate for Southeast Al aska.

MR. ARNOLD said the Kensington Mne has been the subject of
i ntense study, collaboration, and design for nore than 17 years,
during which tine the objective was always to ensure that the
plan would enbody the highest ©principles of environnental
stewardship, which M. Arnold said the conpany calls, "producing

and protecting.” He expressed pride in the mne, characterizing
it as a unique project that protects Alaska's clean water while
providing significant, |long-term econom c benefit for the region
and the state. He spoke of the previously nentioned 2006

Hardrock M neral Conmunity Qutreach and Economic Security Award
from the U S. Bureau of Land Managenent and said the award is

meani ngful in that it recognizes responsible and sustainable
resource developnent - the cornerstone of the Kensington M ne
pl an.

MR.  ARNOLD relayed that Coeur Al aska, I nc. is spending
approximately $190 mllion of capital to build the Kensington
Mne in an area that has been hone to gold mning for over 100
years. He noted that in fact, the Kensington Mne is in the
sane "geologic gold belt” that Bart Thane m ned and Juneau was
built upon. Wen conpleted, he stated, the Kensington Mne wl|
be anmong the newest and nost environnmentally responsible gold

mnes in all of North Anmerica. The conpany currently holds
about 60 environnmental and regulatory permts and has 300
wor kers working at the mne. More than $25 million has been

spent on nearly 900 environnental studies. He related that the
m ne has already proven to be a huge boost for the region's

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 32- August 31, 2006



econony, and enjoys w despread support anobng business, conmunity
| eaders, Native corporations, and area residents.

MR. ARNOLD said the Kensington Mne is designed to produce
approxi mately 100,000 ounces of gold annually. Once it begins
operations, the mne will have about 200 permanent workers, wth
a $16 mllion annual payroll and benefit. The mne is expected
to generate mllions nore in annual state and |ocal tax
revenues, and additionally has already established itself as a
pillar of charitable contribution in the region, and a staunch
supporter of the Native community and | ocal businesses, he said.

MR. ARNOLD said project opponents want people to believe that
Kensi ngton Mne's environnental permts pose a threat to clean
water and set "sonme sort of precedent for other mnes in
Al aska. " He stated that Coeur Al aska, Inc. contends that both
those assertions are false. He explained that because no two
mnes are alike, permits for any given mne are always eval uated
and issued based on an exacting set of specifications unique to

each m ne. He offered three characteristics of the Kensington
M ne, as contrasted with other mnes: it is an underground n ne
with very little to mark the |andscape, other than various
t unnel entrances and sone relatively conpact processi ng
facilities; it uses fairly sinple mlling, followed by a

relatively benign flotation process to separate the nmetal from
the crushed rock, w thout the use of chenicals such as cyanide
to leach netal from the ore; and its crushed waste rock or

tailings will be inert and will ook nmuch |ike the sand at Sandy
Beach in Juneau. M. Arnold said about 40 percent of the
tailings will be recycled back into the mne and be used for
fill material; USACE has twi ce validated a disposal plan for the
remai nder of the tailings that wll have the |east possible
i mpact on the environnent. He reviewed that the plan also

i ncludes a conplete reclanmation of the disposal area once m ning
at Kensington is conplete. The mning operation, he summarized
is recognized as the best environnental option by state and
f ederal agenci es.

MR. ARNOLD said the tenporary injunction granted to SEACC from
the 9th GCircuit Court of Appeals affects "sonme of our
construction activities in the area of the tailings facility."”
The injunction was granted, he said, even after the Al aska
District Court validated the permt by dismssing SEACC s
| awsuit earlier this nonth. Wrk continues elsewhere on the
project site, he said, because Coeur Alaska, |Inc. remains
convinced that the project is sound and the conpany wll
"prevail on the nerits upon appeal ."

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 33- August 31, 2006



3:05: 55 PM

MR. ARNCLD said that despite its many differences with SEACC, it
is in full agreenment with SEACC on one key point: Al askans do
i ndeed deserve clean water. He said Al aska nust denmand
responsi bl e mneral devel opnent. He expressed pride in being
involved in the Kensington M ne. He stated, "It's a project
that will operate in conpliance wth the highest standards of
environnmental protection, while providing nuch needed |ong-term
econom ¢ benefits to the community."

3:06:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the workers at the Kensington
M ne are comuters, and he asked what percentage of the workers
is Al askan, versus fromout of state.

3:07:28 PM

MR. ARNOLD replied that last time the statistic was checked, 76
percent of the workers were Al askan.

REPRESENTATI VE CGATTO asked if that 1is <considered a good
percentage conpared to other mnes. He stated that he is
hopeful that mnes will enploy people fromthe area.

MR. ARNOLD said he does not know, because he is only focusing on
one nine.

3:08: 07 PM

MR. ARNOLD, in response to questions from Senator Dyson, said
the dameffects "the entire current |ake."

SENATOR DYSON asked, "Are there several or many tailing handling

schenmes like this around North Anmerica that have operated
arguably successfully, wthout doing any detrinental damage to
the water quality?"

MR. ARNOLD indicated that he would like to get an answer from
anot her source because he cannot answer that question properly
[ because of ongoing litigation].

SENATOR DYSON asked, "May | inply from your answer, then, that

you haven't worked on other simlar tailing handling schemes in
wet | ands?"

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 34- August 31, 2006



MR. ARNOLD responded, "Wat you can inply is that I'm unable to
take questions about the tailings facilities because we're in
l[itigation."

3:10: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked if Coeur Alaska, Inc. has had to
fire or lay off any of its workers and, if so, how many.

MR. ARNOLD responded that he cannot answer that question right
Now.

3:11: 02 PM

SENATOR ELTON said Representative Gtto's point about hiring
locally may be an issue that the next |l|egislature wants to
address. He expressed that one of his fears after speaking with
some mning people around the state is that mnes are "starting
to canni balize each others' work force." He opined that a role
for the state would be to attenpt to get nore Al askans trained
for the good jobs that are out there in the m nes. He said he
thinks 76 percent is a good nunber, but he is concerned that the
nunber will not inproved unless nore Al askans are trained for
t hose j obs.

3:13: 00 PM

MR. FOGELS, in response to a request fromthe chair to speak to
Senator Dyson's previous question to M. Arnold, said the
permtted mne calls for a dam that is at the outlet of the
| ake, thus the entire |ake would be behind the dam He
reiterated that it is the working assunption that once the 4.5
mllion tons of tailings go into the lake, all the fish in the
| ake will die.

SENATOR DYSON indicated that he may have been confused by the
phot o.

MR. FOGELS noted that the lake itself has a very narrow gorge,
across which the dam wll be built. The dam wll be
approximately 300 feet long and 90 feet tall.

SENATOR DYSON asked if there are other schenes in which, after

sone period of tinme, the turbidity will settle out and the body
of water will once again be a suitable fish habitat.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 35- August 31, 2006



MR. FOGELS offered his understanding that this is the first tine
in nodern permtting history that a | ake has been proposed for a
tailings disposal facility. He pointed out that there are other

| akes <currently in Alaska "behind tailings dans,”" and the
tailings do settle out. He said a |lot of work was done to find
out whether tailings would settle out or stay suspended, and the
nodel i ng done shows that the tailings wll settle. Sonet i e
after closure, he said, there will be clean water on top of
those tailings. He added, "They have to neet clean water

standards at sonme point."

SENATOR DYSON asked if [Lower Slate Lake] is currently
bi oacti ve.

MR. FOGELS responded that he has not recently seen the | ake, but
he knows that the water |evel has been "drawn down." He added
"But | can't tell you whether any of those fish are still happy
fish there or not."

CO CHAIR SAMUELS noted that it would not necessarily be the
toxins fromtailings that would kill fish, but rather the sheer
anmount of silt or dirt going into the water.

MR. FOGELS answered that's correct. He added, "Actually, right

where the pipe would enter the |ake water itself, ... there are
floatation regions that cone out wth that, and there wll
probably be ... low PH levels and sone additional toxicity from
those regions around where the pipe is discharging. That was

anticipated to dissipate pretty quickly or get entrained wth
the tailings."

3:16: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO recalled that taconite tailings were dunped
into Lake M chigan back in the 1950s, or earlier. He asked if
M. Fogels has any information regarding Lake M chigan and
whet her it recovered on its own.

MR FOGELS said he doesn't have that information but could | ook
into the matter.

3:18:38 PM
MR, FOGELS, in response to a question from Senator Dyson,
explained that the dam wll be a permanent fixture, wth a

spillway cut around the dam in solid bedrock in order that the
water can discharge naturally from the lake to Lower Slate

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 36- August 31, 2006



Cr eek. He reminded the commttee that that would only occur
once the water in the | ake net clean water standards.

3:19:12 PM

CO CHAIR SAMJELS asked participants to act as contacts and to
get information to his office as it becomes avail abl e.

ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the Joint
House and Senate Resources Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 3:19:43 PM

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 37- August 31, 2006



